
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING PACKET 

DECEMBER 10, 2015  



 
 

 
Mayor Council Members  
Merle Aaron Allan Steagall 
City Manager Ray Calfee 
Darrell Boeske Andy Curry 
City Secretary Norman Funderburk 
Jason Stuebe David Pierce  
     

Agenda 
Humble City Council 

Regular Meeting 
Thursday, December 10, 2015 6:30 P.M.  

City Hall Council Chamber, 114 West Higgins 
Humble, Texas 

 
Call to order. 
 

1. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

2. Consent agenda items which consist of ministerial or “housekeeping” items as required 
by law.  Items may be removed from the consent agenda and discussed by majority vote 
of the Council. 

 
a. Minutes – Regular Meeting Minutes November 12, 2015 
b. Financial Statement  
c. Current Invoices 
d. Monthly Department Reports 
e. Correspondence 

 
3. Ordinance 15-769 amending Chapter 40 “Taxation” by repealing the application of the 

exemption from Local Sales and Use Taxes on receipts from the sale of 
Telecommunication Services within the City of Humble, Texas; providing a severability 
clause; and providing an effective date.   

 
4. Ordinance 15-770 providing for the vacating, abandonment, and closing of a thirty foot 

Right-of-Way easement lying between Blocks 1 and 2 of the M. Butler Subdivision out 
of the John Brown Jones 1/3 League, Abstract No. 484 in the City of Humble, Harris 
County, Texas. 

 
5. Resolution 15-759 designating an individual to serve on the Board of Directors of the 

Harris-Galveston Subsidence District for the 2016-2018 term. 
 

6. Approval of a contract between the City of Humble, Texas and RPS Klotz and Associates 
to providing engineering services for the Townsen Boulevard Extension and TxDOT 
Coordination Project in the amount of $520,000.00. 



 
7. Approval of Change Order No. 2 to the 2013 Asphalt Pavement Improvements Contract 

between the City of Humble, Texas and Angel Brothers Enterprises, Ltd. In the amount 
of $449,049.70 

 
8. Approval of the Gonzalez Development Plat, a subdivision of a 0.6694 acre lot in the 

C.C. Shelby One-Third League, Abstract No. 693, being the east portion of Lot 2, and all 
of Lot’s 3 and 4 of the Spears Village Subdivision, Volume 40, Page 73, Map Records of 
Harris County, City of Humble, Harris County, Texas.   

 
9.  Approval of the Expressway Inn Humble Development Plat, 1.000 acre, being a partial 

replat of Block 10, of the James W. Weed Subdivision as recorded in Volume 1, Page 88, 
Map Records Harris County, Texas & Being the same called 1.00 acre tract as recorded 
in Harris County Clerk’s File No. 20150260959 & situated in the James Strange Survey, 
Abstract No. 695, City of Humble, Harris County, Texas; 1 Block, 1 Reserve.  

 
10. Approval of the Wilson Road Industrial Complex Partial Replat No. 2, a subdivision of a 

1.6959 acre tract of land being a replat of the proposed Reserve 1, Block 1, Partial Replat 
No 1 of Wilson Road Industrial Complex, a subdivision in Harris County, Texas 
according to the Map or plat thereof recorded under film code 650228 of the Map 
Records of Harris County, Texas, City of Humble, Harris County, Texas; 2 Reserves, 1 
Block.  

 
11. Approval of the RTG Humble Subdivision Plat, being a 5.053 acre tract of land situated 

in the W.B. Adams Survey, Abstract No. 95, as recorded under Harris County Clerk’s 
File Number 20150036948 of the Harris County Official Public Records of Real 
Property; 1 Reserve, 1 Block.   

 
12. Approval of the Insurance Committee’s recommendations for the City of Humble’s 

Employee Group Insurance Coverage for 2016. 
 
Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Humble, Texas 
will be held on Thursday, December 10, 2015 at 6:30 P.M. at the City Hall Council Chamber, 
114 West Higgins, Humble, Texas.  The following subjects will be discussed, to wit: See 
Agenda. 
 
Posted this 7th day of December, 2015 at 5:00 P.M. 
 
 
      
City Secretary 
 
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the Governing Body of 
the City of Humble, Texas, is a true and correct copy of said Notice and that I posted a true and 
correct copy of said notice on the bulletin board at City Hall, 114 West Higgins, Humble, Texas 
and the City’s website, www.cityofhumble.com.  The Agenda and Notice are readily accessible 

http://www.cityofhumble.com/


to the general public at all times.  Said Notice and Agenda were posted on December 7, 2015 at 
5:00 P.M. and remained so posted continuously for at least 72 hours proceeding the scheduled 
time of said meeting. 
 
This public notice was removed from the official posting board at the Humble City Hall on the 
following date and time:       by                   
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the  , day of    , 2015. 
 
      
Notary Public – Harris County, Texas  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

12-10-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #2A 

 

MINUTES 

 

 NOVEMBER 12, 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Minutes 11-12-2015 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

NOVEMBER 12, 2015 – 6:30 P.M. 
 

HELD AT CITY HALL, 114 WEST HIGGINS, HUMBLE, TEXAS 
 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
   § 
COUNTY OF HARRIS § 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Merle Aaron, Presiding 
    Mayor Pro Tem Allan Steagall 
    Council Member Ray Calfee 
    Council Member Andy Curry 
    Council Member David Pierce 
    City Manager Darrell Boeske 
    City Secretary Jason Stuebe 
     
MEMBERS ABSENT:  Council Member Norman Funderburk 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Finance Director Aimee Phillips 
     Fire Chief Gary Outlaw 
    Police Chief Delbert Dawes 
    Public Works Director Barry Brock 
    Fire Marshal James Nykaza 
    Records Manager Betty Hogan 
    Records Clerk Madenia Donnelly 
    Secretary to the Chief of Police Julie Price 
    Lt. Melinda Bradshaw 
    Lt. Mike Nansel 
    Sgt. Ken Theis 
    Officer Twyla Kimberlin 
    Officer Jeremy Golden 
    Code Enforcement Officer Fidel Martinez 
    Firefighter John Gosselin  
    Crime Victim Coordinator Chris Green 
         
VISITORS PRESENT:  Linda Aaron 
    Juanita Steagall 
    Arliss Bentley 
    Matthew Costa         
    John Crone     
 



Minutes 11-12-2015 

Mayor Aaron called the regular meeting of the Humble City Council to order with a quorum present at 
6:30 P.M.   

 
1. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

Mayor Aaron offered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Mayor Aaron also informed all those in attendance that following the meeting, the Chief of Police 
Dawes would be sworn in and all were welcome to the reception after the meeting.  
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA 
2A.  MINUTES – MEETING MINUTES OCTOBER 22, 2015; OCTOBER 30, 2015 
2B.  FINANCIAL STATEMENT AND QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORTS 
2C.  CURRENT INVOICES 
2D.  MONTHLY DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
2E.  CORRESPONDENCE 

 
Upon a motion by Council Member Curry, the City Council voted five (5) for and none (0) opposed to 
approve the Consent Agenda. 
 

3. ORDINANCE 15-764 AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS, BY 
AMENDING CHAPTER 16, “ENVIRONMENT”, ARTICLE IV “OFFENSIVE CONDITIONS”, SECTION 77 
“PROHIBITED CONDITIONS, IN GENERAL”; AND MAKING OTHER FINDINGS AND PROVISIONS 
RELATED THERETO. 
 
City Manager Boeske asked for approval of the ordinance. 
 
Upon a motion by Council Member Steagall, the City Council voted five (5) for and none (0) opposed 
to approve the Ordinance 15-764. 
 

4. ORDINANCE 15-765 AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS, BY 
CREATING A NEW SECTION 12-407 IN CHAPTER 12 “BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS”, 
ARTICLE XI, “COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS AND PROPERTIES”, SECTION 407 “HOTELS AND MOTELS”; 
PROVIDING FOR A FINE IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2,000.00 A DAY FOR VIOLATION OF THIS 
ORDINANCE AND MAKING OTHER FINDINGS AND PROVISIONS RELATED THERETO. 

 
City Manager Boeske asked for approval of the ordinance. 
 
Upon a motion by Council Member Steagall, the City Council voted five (5) for and none (0) opposed 
to approve the Ordinance 15-765. 
 

5. ORDINANCE 15-766 AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS, BY 
AMENDING CHAPTER 18 “FIRE PREVENTION AND PROTECTION”, ARTICLE IV “FIRE CODE”, SECTION 
18-98 BY ADOPTING A LOCAL AMENDMENT TO THE 2012 INTERNATIONAL FIRE PREVENTION CODE 
TO REQUIRE FIRE PROTECTION SPRINKLER SYSTEMS FOR CERTAIN MULTI-FAMILY DWELLING 
UNITS AND REQUIRING MINIMUM SEPARATION OF CERTAIN RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURES; 
PROVIDING A SAVING AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSE AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
City Manager Boeske asked for approval of the ordinance. 



Minutes 11-12-2015 

 
Upon a motion by Mayor Aaron, the City Council voted five (5) for and none (0) opposed to approve 
the Ordinance 15-766. 

 
6. RESOLUTION 15-758 CASTING A BALLOT FOR THE ELECTION OF A PERSON TO THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS OF THE HARRIS COUNTY APPRAISAL DISTRICT. 
 

City Manager Boeske stated that the City had previously nominated Ed Heathcott and 
recommended casting a ballot in his name. 
 
Upon a motion by Council Member Steagall, the City Council voted five (5) for and none (0) opposed 
to approve Resolution 15-758 and cast a ballot for Ed Heathcott to serve on the Harris County 
Appraisal District Board of Directors. 
 

7. APPROVAL OF BID 16-01 FOR AN ELECTRICAL AND MECHANICAL SERVICES CONTRACT FOR WATER 
AND WASTEWATER FACILITIES BETWEEN THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS AND ELECTRICAL FIELD 
SERVICES, INC. IN AN AMOUNT BASED UPON THE HOURLY RATE CONTAINED IN THE BID.   

 
City Manager Boeske asked for approval of the contract. 
 
Upon a motion by Council Member Steagall, the City Council voted five (5) for and none (0) opposed 
to approve Bid 16-01 and the Electrical and Mechanical Services Contract with Electrical Field 
Services, Inc. 
 

8. AUTHORIZATION FOR THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT TO PURCHASE A STREET SWEEPER IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $163,635.00 AND A BACKHOE IN THE AMOUNT OF $102,077.08. 

 
City Manager Boeske asked for approval of the purchase. 
 
Mayor Aaron asked if the City had received a discount on the purchase price.  City Manager Boeske 
stated that the City had.   
 
Upon a motion by Council Member Curry, the City Council voted five (5) for and none (0) opposed to 
approve the purchase of a street sweeper and backhoe. 
 

9. APPROVAL OF DECLARED CITY HOLIDAYS FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2016.  
 

Upon a motion by Council Member Steagall, the City Council voted five (5) for and none (0) opposed 
to approve the declared city holidays for 2016. 
 

10. APPROVAL OF THE SHREE GANSHYAM DEVELOPMENT PLAT, 1.60 ACRES, BEING THE SAME TRACT 
AS RECORDED IN HARRIS COUNTY CLERK’S FILE NO. 20140510113 AND SITUATED IN THE JOHN 
BROWN JONES SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 484, CITY OF HUMBLE, HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS; 1 BLOCK, 
1 RESERVE. 

 
City Manager Boeske stated the plat met all of the City’s specifications and asked for approval.   
 



Minutes 11-12-2015 

Council Member Pierce stated he had concerns about making left hand turns out of property onto 
FM 1960 and asked if the City had any authority or approval over that.  City Manager Boeske and 
City Secretary Stuebe explained that because FM 1960 is a TXDOT roadway, the city had no 
authority or control and that TXDOT had approved the ingress and egress for the property.   
 
Upon a motion by Council Member Calfee, the City Council voted five (5) for and none (0) opposed 
to approve the Shree Ganshyam Development Plat. 
 

There being no further business before the City Council, Mayor Aaron adjourned the Regular Meeting of 
the City Council at 6:40 P.M. on Thursday, November 12, 2015.   

 
 
    
             

       Merle Aaron 
       Mayor 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
       
 Jason Stuebe 
 City Secretary 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

12-10-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #2B 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Humble
Balance on Deposit, All Funds
For the Month November 2015

General Fund:

Fiscal YTD 
Earnings

Balance as of 
11/30/2015

Cash 114.39$            4,084,282.67$         
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 11,659.94         9,504,403.78           
Cash - METRO 123.61              8,686,063.65           
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs - METRO 7,355.21           7,125,990.14           

Total 19,253.15         29,400,740.24         

Water & Sewer Operating Fund:
Cash -                    6,449,039.45           
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 4,463.02           2,531,632.07           

Total 4,463.02           8,980,671.52           

Photo Traffic Safety Fund:
Cash 29.53                1,892,265.63           
Brokerage CDs -                    502,309.75              

Total 29.53                2,394,575.38           

Hotel Tax Fund:
Cash -                    711,745.11              

Total -                    711,745.11              

Capital Projects Fund:
TexStar- Water Well Construction 0.72                  4,156.83                  
Brokerage CDs- Water Well Construction -                    145,631.19              

Total 0.72                  149,788.02              

Sewer Plant Construction Fund:
Cash -                    478,076.02              
Brokerage CDs 150.41              120,533.28              

Total 150.41              598,609.30              

Total All Funds:
Cash 267.53              22,301,472.53         
TexStar 0.72                  4,156.83                  
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 23,628.58         19,930,500.21         
Total 23,896.83$      42,236,129.57$       



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

12-10-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #2C 

 

CURRENT INVOICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECKS

Water & Sewer Special Red Light Special 

Date General Fund Operating Fund Revenue Camera Projects TOTAL

10/30/2015 50,826.54                7,818.39                       112.50                   647,935.44             706,692.87$             
10/30/2015 487,496.10              32,112.27                     3,855.36                358.33                 523,822.06$             
11/12/2015 167,491.76              1,920.00                       56,756.40           226,168.16$             
11/12/2015 96,422.37$              48,531.51                     119.14                   1,594.97             ________________ 146,667.99$             

802,236.77$           90,382.17$                   4,087.00$             58,709.70$         647,935.44$          1,603,351.08$         

SEPTEMBER PURCHASE CARDS

124,065.39$          44,062.49 206.87$               1,223.34$          169,558.09$           

















Alexander, Joe 9/23/2015 9/24/2015 Oreilly Auto  00004192Humble, TX 31.19

Boeske, W 9/25/2015 9/28/2015 Shell Oil 10001004000Georgetown, TX 44.2

Boeske, W 9/24/2015 9/28/2015 Haagen Dazs #550San Antonio, TX 32.26

Boeske, W 9/24/2015 9/28/2015 Acenar San Antonio, TX 606.17

682.63

Campbell, Jason9/24/2015 9/24/2015 Dx Service 281-457-4825, TX 1042.26

Chambers, Vera 9/23/2015 9/23/2015 Comcast Of Houston713-341-1000, TX 15.46

Coats, Carolyn 9/16/2015 9/23/2015 Party City 0175 Humble, TX 119.79

Coombs, Clint 9/24/2015 9/25/2015 Texas Travel Plaza 1Humble, TX 10.5

Coombs, Clint 9/21/2015 9/22/2015 Oreilly Auto  00004192Humble, TX 19.99

30.49

Cuellar, Angel 9/25/2015 9/28/2015 M D N  EnterprisesNew Caney, TX 45.96

Cuellar, Angel 9/24/2015 9/28/2015 M D N  EnterprisesNew Caney, TX 128.08

Cuellar, Angel 9/21/2015 9/22/2015 Ferguson Ent #2725281-446-3869, TX 5.44

179.48

Culp, Joseph 9/21/2015 9/22/2015 Wm Supercenter #1837Humble, TX 26.88

Davis, Ray 9/25/2015 9/28/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 13.97

Davis, Ray 9/24/2015 9/25/2015 Iws Gas And Supply Of281-540-5500, TX 82.41

96.38

Emerson, Kevin 9/25/2015 9/28/2015 Oreilly Auto  00004192Humble, TX 39.99

Fillmore, Steve 9/28/2015 9/29/2015 Besco Electric SupplyHouston, TX 6.17

Fillmore, Steve 9/22/2015 9/23/2015 Oreilly Auto  00004192Humble, TX 34.73

40.9

Flores, Teodulo 9/23/2015 9/25/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 152.08

Flynt, Michael 9/29/2015 9/29/2015 Tacticalgearcom 636-6808000, MO 247.99

Flynt, Michael 9/25/2015 9/28/2015 Ads Inc 757-4817758, VA 2875.31

3123.3

Ganyo, Mark 9/28/2015 9/30/2015 Bound Tree Medical LlcTel8002827904, OH -4.7

Ganyo, Mark 9/25/2015 9/28/2015 Bound Tree Medical LlcTel8002827904, OH 79.64

Ganyo, Mark 9/22/2015 9/25/2015 Bound Tree Medical LlcTel8002827904, OH 210.71

Ganyo, Mark 9/21/2015 9/23/2015 Bound Tree Medical LlcTel8002827904, OH 91.45

377.1

Gonzalez, Victor 9/28/2015 9/29/2015 Academy Sports #21Humble, TX 41.98

Grimes, Charlie 9/25/2015 9/28/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 24.94

Grimes, Charlie 9/23/2015 9/24/2015 Moore Supply CompanyHumble, TX 88.01

Grimes, Charlie 9/23/2015 9/24/2015 Moore Supply CompanyHumble, TX 43.49

Grimes, Charlie 9/22/2015 9/23/2015 Sherwin Williams #7319Humble, TX 106.79

Grimes, Charlie 9/22/2015 9/24/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 57.96

321.19

Gunn, Kevin 9/25/2015 9/28/2015 Ferguson Ent #2725281-446-3869, TX 63.29

Gunn, Kevin 9/23/2015 9/25/2015 M D N  EnterprisesNew Caney, TX 1907.3

1970.59

Hosler, Thomas 9/25/2015 9/28/2015 Texas Southern Unv ParHouston, TX 3

Hosler, Thomas 9/24/2015 9/24/2015 Rexel2530 Houston, TX 3300

Hosler, Thomas 9/23/2015 9/25/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 176.37

Hosler, Thomas 9/23/2015 9/25/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 2428.25

5907.62



Johnson Iii, Louis9/25/2015 9/28/2015 Fort Bend Services Inc281-261-5199, TX 1473

Johnson Iii, Louis9/23/2015 9/25/2015 Hach Company Loveland, CO 124.79

1597.79

Kellar, Chancey 9/24/2015 9/28/2015 Direct Grass ServicesHumble, TX 34.3

Kellar, Chancey 9/24/2015 9/28/2015 Direct Grass ServicesHumble, TX 24.5

Kellar, Chancey 9/24/2015 9/28/2015 Direct Grass ServicesHumble, TX 29.4

88.2

Killian, Elanna 9/21/2015 9/22/2015 American Screen GraphiKingwood, TX 42

Legoudes, Melissa9/29/2015 9/30/2015 Office Depot #1127800-463-3768, TX 144.51

Legoudes, Melissa9/29/2015 9/30/2015 Air Delights Inc 800-4405556, OR 219.89

Legoudes, Melissa9/28/2015 9/30/2015 Promotions Now Moorestown, NJ 2157.51

Legoudes, Melissa9/28/2015 9/30/2015 Promotions Now Moorestown, NJ 1055.95

Legoudes, Melissa9/28/2015 9/29/2015 Thyssenkruppelevator W07707990400, GA 2352.18

Legoudes, Melissa9/26/2015 9/28/2015 Office Depot #2093Spring, TX 1018.74

Legoudes, Melissa9/26/2015 9/28/2015 Ups 295950h0n0r800-811-1648, GA 5.95

Legoudes, Melissa9/25/2015 9/25/2015 Ups 1zvt75860299936355800-811-1648, GA 38.69

Legoudes, Melissa9/25/2015 9/25/2015 Notary Public Texas08506563028, FL 101.75

Legoudes, Melissa9/23/2015 9/24/2015 4imprint 877-4467746, WI 851.27

Legoudes, Melissa9/22/2015 9/23/2015 Office Depot #1127800-463-3768, TX 52.68

Legoudes, Melissa9/22/2015 9/23/2015 Office Depot #1127800-463-3768, TX 55.96

8055.08

Legoudes, Michael9/23/2015 9/23/2015 Galls 08592667227, KY 1755

Legoudes, Michael9/23/2015 9/24/2015 Jones&Bartlett Learnin09784435000, MA 717.37

Legoudes, Michael9/21/2015 9/22/2015 Rugged Depot Llc2816206107, CO 2070

Legoudes, Michael9/21/2015 9/22/2015 Mister Car Wash #19qpsHumble, TX 6

4548.37

Love, Kenneth 9/24/2015 9/28/2015 Public Safety CenterVisalia, CA 599.9

Love, Kenneth 9/23/2015 9/24/2015 Txtag 888 468 9824888-4689824, TX 10.7

Love, Kenneth 9/22/2015 9/24/2015 Toll/Msb 888-811-4565Austin, TX 16.72

Love, Kenneth 9/22/2015 9/24/2015 Public Safety CenterVisalia, CA 1134.79

1762.11

Macias, Mayra 9/24/2015 9/25/2015 Office Depot #1127800-463-3768, TX 105.9

Macias, Mayra 9/23/2015 9/24/2015 Office Depot #1127800-463-3768, TX 241.87

347.77

Martinez, Fidel 9/21/2015 9/22/2015 Wm Supercenter #1837Humble, TX 18.64

Martinez, Fidel 9/21/2015 9/22/2015 Mister Car Wash #9 QpsHumble, TX 13

31.64

Maxwell, James 9/25/2015 9/28/2015 Tceq Epayment Austin, TX 111

Mccaa, George 9/24/2015 9/28/2015 Ppg Paints 9613 Humble, TX 35.67

Mccaa, George 9/23/2015 9/25/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 299.6

335.27

Meadows, Gordon9/23/2015 9/25/2015 M D N  EnterprisesNew Caney, TX 1990.2

Michaud, Paula 9/29/2015 9/29/2015 Vzwrlss My Vz Vb P800-922-0204, GA 7336.08

Michaud, Paula 9/25/2015 9/28/2015 Wm Ezpay 866-834-2080, TX 5720.36

13056.44

Miller, Craig 9/27/2015 9/28/2015 Kohl'S #0521 Conroe, TX 107.96

Mittag, Jeremy 9/29/2015 9/30/2015 Drip Depot 08885258874, OR 475.39

Mittag, Jeremy 9/28/2015 9/30/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 185.92

Mittag, Jeremy 9/28/2015 9/30/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 17.33

Mittag, Jeremy 9/25/2015 9/28/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 120.35



Mittag, Jeremy 9/24/2015 9/28/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 19.97

Mittag, Jeremy 9/23/2015 9/24/2015 Lowes #00750 Kingwood, TX 312.25

Mittag, Jeremy 9/23/2015 9/24/2015 Elliott Electric SupplNacogdoches, TX 34.1

Mittag, Jeremy 9/21/2015 9/23/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 25.62

1190.93

Moore, Sharon 9/22/2015 9/23/2015 Ds Services Standard C800-4928377, GA 31.78

Morgan, Cindy 9/23/2015 9/24/2015 Office Depot #1127800-463-3768, TX 64.77

Neeley, William 9/29/2015 9/30/2015 Hid Auto Vision Llc813-506-8931, FL 49.99

Neeley, William 9/28/2015 9/29/2015 Oreilly Auto  00004192Humble, TX 43.4

Neeley, William 9/28/2015 9/30/2015 Sears Roebuck   1417Humble, TX 9.24

Neeley, William 9/25/2015 9/28/2015 Lansdowne-Moody Co (HoHouston, TX 133.4

Neeley, William 9/24/2015 9/25/2015 Sk53 Humble Humble, TX 1533.94

Neeley, William 9/22/2015 9/24/2015 Goodyear Commercial TiHouston, TX 403.85

2173.82

Nykaza, James 9/24/2015 9/28/2015 Sign Mart Of HumbleHumble, TX 60

Nykaza, James 9/23/2015 9/24/2015 At Home #66 Humble, TX 31.96

Nykaza, James 9/23/2015 9/25/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 43.92

Nykaza, James 9/23/2015 9/25/2015 Bed Bath & Beyond #116Humble, TX 71.91

Nykaza, James 9/22/2015 9/23/2015 Paladin Auto SpecialtiHumble, TX 200

Nykaza, James 9/22/2015 9/23/2015 Mister Car Wash #19qpsHumble, TX 16

423.79

Ortiz, Raul 9/28/2015 9/30/2015 Party City 0175 Humble, TX 2609.71

Ortiz, Raul 9/22/2015 9/23/2015 Community MotorsNew Caney, TX 805.5

3415.21

Pennington, Robert9/25/2015 9/28/2015 Mister Car Wash #19qpsHumble, TX 6

Peters, Richard 9/26/2015 9/28/2015 Shipley Donuts     Q48Kingwood, TX 10

Peters, Richard 9/25/2015 9/28/2015 Thomson West Tcd800-328-4880, MN 333.8

Peters, Richard 9/25/2015 9/28/2015 Skd Tactical 636-323-4500, MO 821.05

Peters, Richard 9/24/2015 9/28/2015 Red The Uniform TailorHouston, TX 259.91

Peters, Richard 9/24/2015 9/28/2015 Red The Uniform TailorHouston, TX 167.9

Peters, Richard 9/22/2015 9/23/2015 In  Brixun Dba Liquid760-6162003, CA 2038

3630.66

Pitts, Joshua 9/21/2015 9/23/2015 M D N  EnterprisesNew Caney, TX 1412

Price, Julia 9/28/2015 9/29/2015 Office Depot #262Humble, TX 6.99

Rhodes, Victoria 9/29/2015 9/30/2015 American Screen Graphi09368908473, TX 372

Rhodes, Victoria 9/25/2015 9/28/2015 Office Depot #1127800-463-3768, TX 81.29

453.29

Richard, Dale 9/24/2015 9/28/2015 Dynamic Controls & SenKingwood, TX 65

Richard, Dale 9/23/2015 9/24/2015 Minuteman PressHumble, TX 284.07

349.07

Rodriguez, Jose 9/28/2015 9/29/2015 Ewing Irrigation Prd#1Humble, TX 23.21

Rodriguez, Jose 9/25/2015 9/28/2015 Elliott Electric SupplNacogdoches, TX 15

Rodriguez, Jose 9/25/2015 9/28/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 81.37

Rodriguez, Jose 9/22/2015 9/23/2015 Lowes #00750 Kingwood, TX 83.55

Rodriguez, Jose 9/21/2015 9/23/2015 Shell Oil 57543432801Humble, TX 16.51

219.64

Schultz, Jacob 9/29/2015 9/29/2015 Amazon Mktplace PmtsAmzn.Com/Bill, WA 263.61

Schultz, Jacob 9/28/2015 9/30/2015 Harbor Freight Tools 4Humble, TX 159.9

Schultz, Jacob 9/28/2015 9/29/2015 Amazon Mktplace PmtsAmzn.Com/Bill, WA 143.98

Schultz, Jacob 9/28/2015 9/29/2015 Amazon Mktplace PmtsAmzn.Com/Bill, WA 600.97

Schultz, Jacob 9/28/2015 9/30/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 125.19



Schultz, Jacob 9/28/2015 9/30/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX -100.8

Schultz, Jacob 9/27/2015 9/28/2015 Amazon Mktplace PmtsAmzn.Com/Bill, WA 111.35

Schultz, Jacob 9/27/2015 9/28/2015 Amazon Mktplace PmtsAmzn.Com/Bill, WA 1115.41

Schultz, Jacob 9/25/2015 9/28/2015 Amazon Mktplace PmtsAmzn.Com/Bill, WA 125.36

Schultz, Jacob 9/24/2015 9/25/2015 Amazon Mktplace PmtsAmzn.Com/Bill, WA 208.44

Schultz, Jacob 9/24/2015 9/25/2015 Amazon Mktplace PmtsAmzn.Com/Bill, WA 321.26

Schultz, Jacob 9/22/2015 9/23/2015 Belnick Inc. 7707218237, GA 4691.97

Schultz, Jacob 9/22/2015 9/24/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 1322.62

Schultz, Jacob 9/21/2015 9/22/2015 B Dependable PlumbingCleveland, TX 685

9774.26

Scott, David 9/24/2015 9/24/2015 Shsu Web Pay 936-294-1080, TX 95

Scott, Randy 9/29/2015 9/30/2015 Vitalpet 1 Humble, TX 15

Scott, Randy 9/22/2015 9/23/2015 Office Depot #262Humble, TX 16.99

Scott, Randy 9/21/2015 9/23/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 29.97

61.96

Stephens, Philisa9/24/2015 9/24/2015 Dell Sales & Service866-393-9460, TX 773.89

Stuebe, Jason 9/26/2015 9/28/2015 Hyatt Hotels San AntonSan Antonio, TX 5

Taska, Allison 9/24/2015 9/24/2015 Comcast Of Houston713-341-1000, TX 91.53

Tullos, Bradley 9/21/2015 9/23/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 57.94

Villa, Joel 9/25/2015 9/28/2015 Total Rental CenterHouston, TX 130

Villa, Joel 9/24/2015 9/25/2015 Wal-Mart #1837 Humble, TX 19.97

Villa, Joel 9/23/2015 9/25/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 308.83

Villa, Joel 9/23/2015 9/25/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 12.51

Villa, Joel 9/22/2015 9/23/2015 Oreilly Auto  00004192Humble, TX 12.99

Villa, Joel 9/21/2015 9/23/2015 The Home Depot 576Humble, TX 121.42

605.72

Warman, Gary 9/23/2015 9/24/2015 Kohl'S #0554 Humble, TX 53.98

Zavala, Sylvia 9/23/2015 9/24/2015 Ability Network Inc6124604311, MN 190

Zavala, Sylvia 9/23/2015 9/23/2015 Memorial Hermann Gl On07134485502, TX 23.65

Zavala, Sylvia 9/23/2015 9/23/2015 Memorial Hermann Gl On07134485502, TX 23.65

Zavala, Sylvia 9/22/2015 9/22/2015 Memorial Hermann Gl On07134485502, TX 23.65

260.95



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

12-10-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #2D 

 

MONTHLY DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



















































































































































 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

12-10-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #2E 

 

CORRESPONDENCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
November 13, 2015 

Number 39 
 
 
 
 

Revenue Caps Front and Center for  
New Senate Property Tax Committee 

 
Last week, Lt. Governor Dan Patrick announced his appointment of seven senators to serve on a 
new Select Committee on Property Tax Reform and Relief. The select committee will hold 
public hearings across the state to determine how to “improve the property tax process as well as 
reduce the burden on property owners.”  The public hearings will take place over the next year, 
and the select committee will report its findings to the Senate Finance Committee leading into 
the 2017 legislative session.  
 
Though the select committee was established to receive public feedback about how to best 
improve our property tax system and make recommendations accordingly, there is little doubt 
that revenue caps will be a focal point of the hearings and almost certainly will be recommended 
to the Senate Finance Committee. In an Austin American-Statesman article published this week, 
Lt. Governor Patrick suggested caps will be the primary focus of the select committee’s 
hearings: “We need to reduce property taxes. The way you do that is by keeping the growth of 
local governments — city, county and schools — below population and inflation (rates). They 
have to learn to live with less. And if they believe they need more money, they’ll have to go to 
voters and make their case.” 
 
What hopefully will not be lost on the select committee is that cities are not the cause of high 
property taxes in Texas. According to the comptroller, cities collect just 16 percent of the 
property taxes levied in the state. Most of the property taxes paid by Texans (55 percent) go to 
school districts. The latest property tax report by the comptroller shows that the total amount of 
property taxes collected by cities rose by 3.61 percent between 2012 and 2013, while school 
district tax collections rose by more than twice that rate or 7.72 percent. School property taxes 
have been rising because the legislature continues to reduce the state’s share of funding for 
schools which forces districts to get more revenue from property taxes. 
 
The League will closely monitor the select committee, and will notify our member cities when 
public hearings are scheduled in their region.  

https://www.ltgov.state.tx.us/2015/11/05/lt-governor-patrick-announces-committee-appointments-to-select-committee/


2 
 

 
Group in Texas Challenging Cities’ Sex Offender Residency 

Ordinances 
 
Many general law cities in Texas received a letter this week from Texas Voices for Reason and 
Justice, a statewide criminal-justice advocacy group, asking those cities to repeal their sex 
offender residency restriction ordinance. 
 
Under current law, Texas has no statewide residency restriction for registered sex offenders. 
Instead, county probation and state parole rules prohibit sex offenders from living within 
specified distances from schools, parks, day care centers and other sites considered “child safety 
zones.” In the absence of a specific state statute, many general law cities have chosen to enact 
their residency restrictions based on provisions in the Local Government Code that permit 
general law cities to enact basic health and safety rules. (Home rule cities are authorized to enact 
residency restrictions that are consistent with their city charters.)   
 
Texas is not the only state facing a challenge to sex offender residency restriction ordinances. In 
August, the Massachusetts Supreme Court struck down a local sex offender residency ordinance 
in Doe v. City of Lynn. In that case, the Court deemed the restrictions in the ordinance unlawful, 
unsafe and ineffective, and the ruling had the effect of invalidating roughly 40 similar ordinances 
in communities across Massachusetts. 
 
The League is analyzing the letter and will take appropriate action. In the meantime, if your city 
has received such a letter, you should contact your city attorney and liability carrier to discuss 
the city’s options. Please contact Heather Mahurin, TML Legal Counsel, at heather@tml.org 
with specific questions or concerns. 
 
 

Fort Worth Court of Appeals Correctly Applies the Law on 
Demolition of Substandard Structures   

 
The Fort Worth Court of Appeals recently held, in 1701 New York Ave., LLC v. City of 
Arlington, that apartment owners who failed to appeal a demolition order from a municipal court 
were prohibited from bringing a takings claim against the city. This is a favorable case for cities 
in that it properly applies the case law handed down by the Texas Supreme Court in 2012. 
 
On January 27, 2012, the Texas Supreme Court issued the City of Dallas v. Stewart and Patel v. 
City of Everman opinions. As reported at the time, the impact of the opinions on cities was not 
totally clear. There were questions, for instance, about whether an appeal from the decision of an 
administrative body (e.g., the city council, a building and standards commission, or a municipal 
court acting in a civil capacity) must be raised by a property owner within 30 days in order for 
the property owner to assert a takings claims. This timeframe comes from Texas Local 
Government Code Section 214.0012.   
 
The facts in the 1701 New York Ave, LLC case are straightforward—the apartment owners did 
not appeal the municipal court’s nuisance finding and demolition order within the 30 day 

mailto:heather@tml.org?subject=TCEQ%20Stormwater%20Permit
http://www.search.txcourts.gov/SearchMedia.aspx?MediaVersionID=9af8cb33-1028-4bb2-8ca7-7084d3bc52b0&MediaID=24a68188-9ae7-4387-89c7-2c2c65a597c7&coa=COA02&DT=Opinion
http://www.search.txcourts.gov/SearchMedia.aspx?MediaVersionID=9af8cb33-1028-4bb2-8ca7-7084d3bc52b0&MediaID=24a68188-9ae7-4387-89c7-2c2c65a597c7&coa=COA02&DT=Opinion
http://www.tml.org/legis_updates/legis_update021712a_dallasVstewart


3 
 

timeframe. Because the apartment owners did not appeal the demolition order, the court held 
they could not institute a separate proceeding to assert a takings claim. The Fort Worth Court of 
Appeals explains that “[a] party asserting a taking based on an allegedly improper administrative 
nuisance determination must appeal that determination and assert any takings claim in that 
proceeding.”   
 
TML has urged the courts to adopt a clear rule that a takings claim must be brought when 
proceedings are instituted—that is, in the same thirty-day window as the appeal to the 
administrative nuisance determination. Unfortunately, this approach was rejected in Wu v. City of 
San Antonio, a factually complex case in which the San Antonio Court of Appeals broadly 
interpreted what it means to bring a takings claim in the same “proceeding.” 
 
Although there still isn’t a clear-cut rule that a takings claim must be raised in 30 days, the 
bottom line is that cities have continued to use administrative bodies to make nuisance findings 
and order the demolition of substandard structures. So long as the property owners do not appeal 
those findings within 30 days, cities are likely safe from takings claims if they proceed with 
demolition. 
 
 

Judge Dismisses Legal Challenge to Property Tax System 
 

Last week, a Travis County district judge dismissed the City of Austin’s lawsuit challenging the 
property tax appraisal system. The suit sought to declare the current property tax system 
unconstitutional due to a state statute allowing property to be valued in accordance with the 
median level of appraisal of comparable properties, which has ultimately led to the 
undervaluation of commercial property. A previous Legislative Update article detailing the city’s 
arguments can be read here. 
 
It is unclear whether the city plans to appeal the judge’s ruling. League staff will continue to 
monitor and report on any future developments.  
 
 

Payday Lending Clearinghouse Updates 

The League’s “Payday Lending Clearinghouse” webpage, available at www.tml.org/payday-
updates, includes information related to the regulation of payday and auto title lenders.  It is 
updated from time-to-time to reflect recent developments. Interested city officials should note 
that the state’s Office of Consumer Credit Commissioner has proposed new rules related to 
payday and auto title lenders.  For more information, visit the clearinghouse page.   

 

 
TML member cities may use the material herein for any 

purpose. No other person or entity may reproduce, duplicate, 

or distribute any part of this document without the written 

authorization of the Texas Municipal League. 

http://www.search.txcourts.gov/SearchMedia.aspx?MediaVersionID=d318c705-57e7-4415-a7fe-22abdbd4ebd7&MediaID=ccfb0b7b-83e3-4b24-a9db-9fc2bb524b69&coa=%22%20+%20this.CurrentWebState.CurrentCourt%20+%20@%22&DT=Opinion
http://www.search.txcourts.gov/SearchMedia.aspx?MediaVersionID=d318c705-57e7-4415-a7fe-22abdbd4ebd7&MediaID=ccfb0b7b-83e3-4b24-a9db-9fc2bb524b69&coa=%22%20+%20this.CurrentWebState.CurrentCourt%20+%20@%22&DT=Opinion
http://www.tml.org/legis_updates/city-of-austin-challenges-property-tax-appraisal-system
http://www.tml.org/payday-updates
http://www.tml.org/payday-updates


 
November 20, 2015 

Number 40 
 
 
 

TCEQ Proposes Increases to Two Water-Related Fees 
 
The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) has proposed fee increases to two 
fees that cities remit to TCEQ: the Consolidated Water Quality Fee and Public Health Service 
Fee. TCEQ uses a Water Resource Management Account to provide funding for all water 
program-related activities of the TCEQ. General revenue appropriations by the legislature have 
declined over the past few years while overall financial obligations of the account have 
increased. The Texas Legislature failed to provide additional general revenue funding to support 
the agency’s water programs during the 84th Legislative Session, but instead provided the agency 
with the authority to raise rates by rule: 
 
House Bill 1, Article IX, Section 18.01 (General Appropriations Act), 84th Texas Legislature 
(2015), Regular Session, Section 18.01 states: 
 
“In the event that available funds out of the Water Resources Management Account Bo. 153 are 
insufficient to meet appropriates in the Act and related benefits costs, the TCEQ shall increase 
rates for fees deposited to the Water Resources Management Account No. 153 for which it has 
rulemaking authority, including the Water Quality Fee, established in Water Code, Chapter 26 
and the Public Health Service Fee established in Health and Safety Code, Section 341.041, at a 
level to ensure that sufficient balances and revenues are available.” 
 
Thus, TCEQ is increasing the fees cities pay to make up for the lack of funding appropriated by 
the state. TCEQ has already approved an increase in the Consolidated Water Quality Fee, a fee 
collected from entities that have an individual wastewater permit. The increase will be 5.1 
percent to all individual wastewater-permitted entities. 
 
The TCEQ has also proposed raising the Public Health Service Fee, a fee collected from 
operators of public drinking water systems. The fee assessed is based on the total number of 
connections served by the system. Currently, a system with 25 or fewer connections pays $100, a 
system with 26 to 160 connections pays $175, and a system with 161 or more connections pays 
$2.15 per connection.  
 



2 
 

The proposed fee structure will mean a water system with fewer than 25 connections will pay 
$125, a water system with 25 to 160 connections will pay $200, and a system with 161 or more 
connections will pay $2.45 per connection.   
 
As reported in previous editions of the Legislative Update, TCEQ fees are just one example of 
the concept of “reverse intergovernmental aid,” where cities transfer revenue to the state to fund 
various state programs. Prior to the decision to increase these two fees, the annual income 
generated just from cities paying both fees was in excess of $40 million per year in the 
aggregate. In fact, cities (through the payment of all relevant TCEQ fees) generate more revenue 
for TCEQ than does the state’s general fund. 
  
The comment period on the proposed rule is from December 4, 2015, through January 11, 2016. 
Stakeholders interested in providing input on the increase to the Public Health Service Fee can 
comment on the rule in several ways: 
 
Mail written comments to: 
 
Sherry Davis, MC 205 
Office of Legal Services 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
P.O. Box 13087 
Austin, Texas 78711-3087 
 
Fax written comments to 512-239-2141, attn.: Sherry Davis. 
 
Submit online comments using TCEQ’s e-comments page. 
 
Attend the public hearing in Austin on January 5, 2016, at 10:00am at the TCEQ, 12100 Park 
35 Circle, Building E, Room 201S. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact Heather Mahurin, TML Legal Counsel, at 
heather@tml.org. 
  
 

League Files Comments on  
Texas Ethics Commission Vendor Disclosure Rules 

 
As reported in previous editions of the Legislative Update, the Texas Ethics Commission is 
seeking comments on proposed rules to implement new requirements under H.B. 1295. That bill 
imposes new vendor disclosure requirements on city contracts.  
 
Since the passage of H.B. 1295, the League has been concerned about its effect on city contracts. 
All of the League’s correspondence related to the bill, including the comments on the proposed 
rules, is available here.  
 

http://www.tml.org/legis_updates/legis_update020113a_reverse_intergovernmental_aide
https://www.tceq.texas.gov/goto/erules
mailto:heather@tml.org
http://www.sos.state.tx.us/texreg/archive/October232015/Proposed%20Rules/1.ADMINISTRATION.html#13
http://www.legis.state.tx.us/tlodocs/84R/billtext/html/HB01295F.htm
http://www.tml.org/p/HB%201295%20TML%20Correspondence_updated1115.pdf


3 
 

Concerned member cities are urged to file comments with the commission by November 26, 
2015, by email to public_comment@ethics.state.tx.us, or mail to Natalia Luna Ashley, Texas 
Ethics Commission, P.O. Box 12070, Austin, Texas, 78711-2070.   
 
Please contact Christy Drake-Adams, TML Legal Counsel, at christy@tml.org with questions. 
 

 
Discussing City Business on Private Devices and Accounts 

 
Local government officials and employees increasingly use technological means, such as 
electronic mail and text messaging, to carry out their duties. One survey by the Pew Research 
Center reports that 88% of local elected officials use e-mail in their public activities. And a large 
percentage of those relied on a mix of both government and personal accounts. Why can this 
casual approach to communicating about city business be a problem? 
 
Communications about city business are public records. 
 
As previously reported, officials have contested the idea that communications on their private 
devices and accounts are subject to the Texas Public Information Act (PIA). With the 2013 
adoption of S.B. 1368, such arguments have been put to rest. The PIA now expressly makes 
electronic communications about city business public, regardless of whether they are on personal 
or governmental accounts or devices. 
 
Preserving and obtaining communications on private devices is difficult.   
 
City records created or received in the transaction of official business or the creation or 
maintenance of which were paid for by public funds are city property and should be preserved 
and managed in accordance with state law. So what does a city do if an official refuses to 
provide or is unable to find a communication made on a private device or account? One court 
grappled with this issue in City of El Paso v. Abbott. That court essentially concluded that 
beyond having reasonable policies in place that require officials to turn over such 
communications to the city, there’s not much a city must do.   
 
Not surprisingly, this did not sit well with legislators, who responded in 2015 by filing 
legislation such as H.B. 1764 and S.B. 1087. Those bills proposed various things, including 
authorizing the attorney general to sue city officials and employees to obtain public information 
created or maintained on private devices. Although no bills passed in 2015, we are sure to see 
similar legislation filed in 2017.   
 
You can view a recent post by the Texas State Library and Archives Commission discussing 
some of these issues here: https://www.tsl.texas.gov/slrm/blog/2015/11/using-personal-email-
for-government-business-is-a-bad-idea-heres-why/.  
 
 
 

 

mailto:public_comment@ethics.state.tx.us
mailto:christy@tml.org
http://www.tml.org/legis_updates/austin-court-of-appeals-city-related-email-in-personal-account-is-public-information
http://www.legis.state.tx.us/tlodocs/83R/billtext/html/SB01368F.htm
http://www.tml.org/legis_updates/austin-court-of-appeals-city-related-emails-in-personal-accounts
https://www.tsl.texas.gov/slrm/blog/2015/11/using-personal-email-for-government-business-is-a-bad-idea-heres-why/
https://www.tsl.texas.gov/slrm/blog/2015/11/using-personal-email-for-government-business-is-a-bad-idea-heres-why/


4 
 

How Much are City Property Taxes Increasing, Anyway? 
 
For years, proponents of revenue caps have claimed that city property taxes are increasing so 
dramatically that homeowners are being forced out of their homes. In an Austin American-
Statesman article published last week, Lt. Governor Patrick echoed this concern that Texans are 
losing their homes due to exorbitant property taxes: “This is a train wreck coming. If you keep 
increasing people’s taxes at 7, 8, 9, 10 percent a year, you are going to force them out of their 
homes.”  
 
Is it true that city property taxes are increasing drastically enough to force people to move? First 
let’s look at city tax levies. The most recent data provided in the comptroller’s property tax 
reports is through 2013. For the five year period preceding 2013, the average increase in total 
city property tax levy was 2.6 percent per year. These figures suggest that, on average, city 
property taxes haven’t increased at nearly the rate that Lt. Governor Patrick suggests. 
Nevertheless, the amount that city property taxes are increasing each year says nothing about an 
individual homeowner’s ability to pay those taxes. For that, let’s take a look at personal income 
growth in Texas.  
 
The U.S Bureau of Economic Analysis provides a variety of economic statistics, including the 
amount of personal income by state. Looking at the most recent five years of data, Texans’ 
personal income has increased on average by 6.27 percent per year since 2010. Comparing this 
figure against the amount that city property taxes have increased over a similar timeframe, it is 
apparent that, on average, city property taxes are not outpacing personal income growth in 
Texas. One could generally infer that, on the whole, city property taxes are not increasing at a 
rate that would force a homeowner out of his or her house. 
 
(As a side note: It should be pointed out that in the majority of cities, the adopted city tax rates 
themselves are not increasing. A recent TML survey shows that in 2015, 73 percent of cities 
either lowered their tax rate from 2014 or adopted the same rate. The relatively small yearly 
increases in total city property tax levy reflected in the comptroller data is attributable primarily 
to increases in appraisals.) 
 
So some might ask, why are total city property tax levies increasing at all? Shouldn’t they be 
trending in the other direction? That question can be answered by taking a look at population 
growth in the state of Texas. Since 2010, the U.S. Census data shows that the population in 
Texas has increased by 7.2 percent from 25.1 million people in 2010 to 27 million people in 
2014. Not only do the vast majority of Texans live in cities, but Texas cities are among the 
fastest growing in the entire country (many Texas cities have seen their populations grow by 
more than 10 percent since 2010, some experiencing upwards of 30 percent growth.) 
 
What is most concerning about the recent push to limit city property tax revenue through revenue 
caps is the timing of it. The state demographer recently estimated that the state’s population will 
double by 2050. In other words, more than 25 million more people will be living in Texas in 35 
years, and cities will experience the lion’s share of that population growth.  
 

http://comptroller.texas.gov/taxinfo/proptax/resources/reports.html
http://www.bea.gov/itable/iTable.cfm?ReqID=70&step=1#reqid=70&step=1&isuri=1
https://www.google.com/url?q=http://www.tml.org/p/2015FiscalConditionsResults.pdf&sa=U&ved=0CAYQFjABahUKEwi4lJvZmJrJAhXBFR4KHRcVBkA&client=internal-uds-cse&usg=AFQjCNHp_wHtfHaLTCuilsaR9pRQZ__NWQ
http://www.texastribune.org/2015/05/21/interactive-texas-population-growth-2010-2014/
http://www.texastribune.org/2015/03/05/report-texas-population-double-2050/


5 
 

Given this reality, now is the exact wrong time for the state to further limit cities’ flexibility 
when it comes to providing essential transportation infrastructure and public safety protections 
(among other things) to a rapidly growing population. Especially when the data shows that city 
leaders are already responsibly balancing the property tax burden with the needs of their 
communities. 

 

Religious Displays at City Hall 
 
Although the topic of decorating public spaces can arise any time of year, the issue always seems 
to come to the forefront during the winter holiday season. The only way for a city to ensure its 
holiday display does not face a constitutional challenge is to make the display strictly secular in 
nature. Of course, many cities will decide to include certain religious imagery in decorating their 
public spaces. In these cases, it is important for city officials and employees to have a general 
understanding of this area of the law and to work with their city attorney. For that reason, the 
League has prepared a more detailed memo on this topic, available here. 
 

TML member cities may use the material herein for any 

purpose. No other person or entity may reproduce, duplicate, 

or distribute any part of this document without the written 

authorization of the Texas Municipal League. 

http://www.tml.org/p/Religious%20Displays%202015.pdf


 
December 4, 2015 

Number 41 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Get Involved:  TML Legislative Policy Committees 
 
Your involvement in the development of the Texas Municipal League’s 2017-2018 Legislative 
Program is critical to the League’s success.  The program is the “roadmap” by which League 
staff lobbies the Texas Legislature.  The process starts in earnest next spring, and TML President 
C.J. Wax, Mayor of the City of Rockport, is seeking volunteers to provide input.   No particular 
expertise is need.  Volunteers need only have a willingness to learn and the ability to come to 
Austin for two full days in 2016. 
 
Next year’s topic-specific committees will be: 
 

 May 6:   Annexation and Regulation of Development. 
 May 27:  Revenue and Finance. 
 June 3:   Utilities and Transportation. 

 
Service consists of appointment by the TML President to one of the above committees.  Those 
committees will each meet once on the date indicated in Austin.  All three will then combine to 
form the General Government Committee, which will meet on August 19 in Austin.  The 
General Government Committee will finish any topic-specific work and consider additional 
items.   
 
The League’s complete legislative policy development process is described here.  If you have 
questions or would like to volunteer for service on a legislative committee, please email JJ 
Rocha, TML Policy Analyst, at jj@tml.org.  The deadline to apply is December 23, 2015.  
Please include your full contact information and your preferred topic-specific committee.  Due to 
space limitations and other considerations, not all those who apply will be appointed to a 
committee, but will be considered for future volunteer opportunities.   
 
 

http://www.tml.org/p/2015_TML_Policy_Process.pdf
mailto:jj@tml.org


2 
 

Interim Hearings Begin:   Cities on the Agenda 
 
Interim hearings have begun, and cities are once again front-and-center.  The Senate Committee 
on Intergovernmental Relations held its first interim hearing on December 2.  The hearing was 
chock full of city-related discussion on the following charges: 
 

 Examine the processes used by home rule municipalities to adopt ordinances, rules, and 
regulations, including those initiated by petition and voter referendum. Determine if 
additional statutory safeguards are necessary to ensure that ballot language accurately 
describes proposed initiatives. Identify ways to improve transparency and make 
recommendations, if needed, to ensure that local propositions and the means by which 
they are put forth to voters, conform with existing state law. 

 
The League was invited to testify, and provided an overview of general ordinance 
adoption authority for home rule cities. The discussion turned to the impact of two recent 
Texas Supreme Court decisions on ballot language used by home rule cities in charter 
amendment, initiative, and referendum elections. The League testified to the fact that the 
Texas Supreme Court has provided adequate guidance for the level of detail needed in a 
ballot proposition that is presented to city voters, and that further clarification in state 
statute is unnecessary.  

 
 Examine ways to improve government accountability in elections regarding the issuance 

of public debt. Include a review of the information that is currently provided to 
individuals in the voting booth and provide statutory recommendations, if necessary, to 
improve transparency.   

 
League testimony highlighted recent legislation that requires cities and other local 
governments to put together an annual report on debt information and make the report 
available to the public, as well legislation requiring various types of debt information to 
be included in the election order that is then posted on the city’s website and at every 
polling place used in a bond election. The League will continue to oppose, as it did at this 
interim hearing, attempts to add limited and potentially misleading debt information to 
the ballot proposition itself, which has the effect of swaying voters towards rejecting debt 
issuances simply because they are not presented with a complete picture of a city’s 
finances. 
     

The next day, the Senate Veterans Affairs and Military Installations’ Subcommittee on Border 
Security met to consider the following charge: 
 

 Study the various sanctuary city policies statewide, the number and types of crimes 
committed by previously arrested illegal immigrants within the jurisdiction of a 
"sanctuary policy,” and possible solutions to discourage governmental entities from 
putting in place policies that conflict with immigration laws. Make recommendations to 
improve community safety. 

 
The charge refers to cities, but no city officials were invited to testify at the hearing.  
Witnesses consisted of the director of the Texas Department of Public Safety, a deputy 



3 
 

Texas attorney general, and the Jackson County sheriff (who is also the president of the 
Sheriffs’ Association of Texas).  The hearing focused on the technical minutiae of the 
federal Priority Enforcement Program, which replaced the Secure Communities Program. 

 
One of the witnesses promised to define a “sanctuary city.”  After detailed testimony, 
however, no useful definition emerged.  The committee chair also tried to pin down the 
definition, with little success.  Some discussion of “pre-arrest treatment” versus “back-
end cooperation with the federal government” took place, but it didn’t appear to firm up 
the definition at all.  One committee member then stated that “we have certain locales 
that have said on the front end, we believe it is better policy not to enforce…we will not 
ask, and you [the officer] will not ask...”  The League hasn’t been able to find a city with 
such a policy.  Moreover, the witness from the attorney general seemed to advise that 
imposing a state mandate on a law enforcement officer to act in a certain way in any 
particular situation would be unconstitutional as a violation of the separation of powers 
doctrine. 
 
The chair then asked whether there is delineation between sanctuary cities and sanctuary 
counties.  The deputy attorney general concluded that the term “city” is a misnomer.  It 
should be “sanctuary local government.”  Another Senator asked if there is a legal 
definition of “sanctuary city” in state law. Of course, the answer was no.    
 
By the end of the hearing – with no definition for or identification of any sanctuary city 
forthcoming – one senator suggested that maybe the real sanctuary cities were the ones 
that testified against his sanctuary city bill last session.  He went on to suggest that the 
state might act to cut off grants to any such city that testified against his bill in 2015.  
According to legislative records, only one city actually did so.         
 
In any case, the League’s position on immigration remains the same:  City officials 
support local control.  Elected city officials are accountable to their voters for law 
enforcement policies that keep their communities safe.  Decisions about police 
department priorities should be made at city hall and reflect the desires of local voters. 

   
These hearings represent only the tip of the iceberg this legislative interim.  The Speaker and 
Lieutenant Governor have issued an almost unprecedented number of city-related charges, which 
means that the coming months will be busy with interim hearings.  Stay tuned to the Legislative 
Update for complete recaps of each city-related hearing. 
 
 

Federal Transportation Funding Bill 
 
(Editor’s note:  The following article was reprinted directly from the National League of 
Cities.  For more information about this bill, contact Matthew Colvin at colvin@nlc.org or 202-
626-3176.) 
 
With remarkable bipartisan support, the House and Senate passed a multi-year transportation bill 
yesterday that is headed to the President’s desk for signature.  
  

https://www.ice.gov/pep
mailto:colvin@nlc.org


4 
 

The last time Congress passed a bill that gave five or more years of certainty to our nation’s local 
leaders was 1998’s Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century (TEA-21), which makes the 
speedy passage of the FAST Act in both the House and Senate last night something of a small 
December miracle. This monumental effort would not have been possible without the lobbying 
efforts by city officials.   
  
Thanks is also due to the strong leadership of Chairman Inhofe and Ranking Member Boxer on 
the Senate Environment and Public Works Committee as well as Chairman Shuster and Ranking 
Member DeFazio on the House Transportation and Infrastructure Committee, their conferees, 
and leaders on several other committees with jurisdiction over our nation’s surface transportation 
programs.  
  
Passage of the FAST Act is truly great news for cities, which count on vital sources of federal 
funds like the Surface Transportation Program and the Transportation Alternatives Program to 
ensure the economic and physical wellbeing of America’s cities, towns, and villages. What’s 
more, it increases funding for locally owned infrastructure, and provides greater access to 
popular programs for smaller cities.  
  
In the coming days and weeks, NLC will be hosting webinars for city officials to inform them on 
key provisions in the legislation and to answer questions they might have.   
  
For now, here’s a link to a comprehensive summary of the bill:  FAST Act Summary. 
 
 

Update:  General Law Cites and Sex Offenders 
 
Many cities have enacted ordinances governing where registered sex offenders can live.  In 2007, 
the Texas attorney general’s office issued opinion No. GA-0526.  The opinion analyzed whether 
state laws relating to sex offenders preempted a city from enacting such an ordinance.  The 
opinion concluded that they do not.  However, the attorney general also opined that: 

 
[W]e note that you do not specify whether your question concerns general-law or home-
rule municipalities. See id. at 1-2. A general-law municipality is a political subdivision 
"created by the State and, as such, possess[es] those powers and privileges that the State 
expressly confers upon [it]…" 
 
 We have found no law authorizing a general-law municipality to adopt this type of 
residence restriction. Thus, unless the Legislature expressly authorizes it, a general-law 
municipality may not adopt an ordinance restricting where a registered sex offender 
may live. 
 

Based on the above, and as reported in a previous edition of the Legislative Update, a group 
called Texas Voices for Reason and Justice (TVRJ) has sent a letter to each of the 46 known 
general law cities that have adopted a sex offender residency restriction ordinance (referred to by 
TVRJ as a “SORRO”).  The letter demands that each city repeal its SORRO by December 19, 
2015, and claims that TVRJ will file suit against any city that refuses to do so.  
 

http://transportation.house.gov/uploadedfiles/highway_bill_conference.pdf
https://www.texasattorneygeneral.gov/opinions/opinions/50abbott/op/2007/htm/ga-0526.htm


5 
 

Many attorneys believe that the attorney general opinion is incomplete in its analysis, and that a 
general law city’s authority to regulate for the safety and welfare of its residents authorizes a 
SORRO.  Others are more conservative.   
 
In any case, each city that received the TVRJ letter should consult with its city attorney about 
what it plans to do should the threatened lawsuit be filed.  Any city that is actually sued should 
inform its liability carrier and notify Heather Mahurin, TML legal counsel, at heather@tml.org.  
Questions should also be directed to Ms. Mahurin.   
 
 

Texas Ethics Commission Adopts Vendor Disclosure Rules 
 
At its November 30 meeting, the Texas Ethics Commission adopted rules to implement an 
important ethics bill, ignoring several suggested improvements submitted by the League.  As 
previous editions of the Legislative Update described, House Bill 1295 and the adopted rules 
require business entities entering into certain contracts with cities to disclose “interested parties” 
to those contracts. 
  
This new requirement will apply to all contracts entered into after December 31, 2015, that 
meet either of the following conditions:  (1) the value of the contract is at least $1 million; or (2) 
the contract requires an action or vote by the governing body of the governmental entity. Before 
an affected contract may be executed, the vendor must submit the disclosure form to the 
Commission.  The governmental entity must then confirm with the Commission that it has 
received the form. 
 
Despite the efforts of the League and others, many of the questions that the League raised about 
the bill, the new rules, and the new form have gone unanswered.  Member cities are encouraged 
to work with their local legal counsel to implement these new requirements.   
 
Please contact Christy Drake-Adams, TML Legal Counsel, at christy@tml.org with questions.     
 
 

Railroad Commission Municipal Outreach 
 
Chairman David Porter and Texas Railroad Commission staff have announced the commission’s 
Local Government Outreach Workshop Series to educate city officials on its rules, regulations, 
processes and policies, as well as to strengthen relationships between the commission and local 
regulatory partners.  If your city wants someone from the commission as a speaker, email 
publicassist@rrc.texas.gov.  
 
 

Religious Displays at City Hall 
 
Although the topic of decorating public spaces can arise any time of year, the issue always seems 
to come to the forefront during the winter holiday season. The only way for a city to ensure its 
holiday display does not face a constitutional challenge is to make the display strictly secular in 

mailto:heather@tml.org
http://www.tml.org/legis_updates/league-files-comments-on-texas-ethics-commission-vendor-disclosure-rules
https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/forms/1295.pdf
mailto:christy@tml.org
mailto:publicassist@rrc.texas.gov


6 
 

nature. Of course, many cities will decide to include certain religious imagery in decorating their 
public spaces. In these cases, it is important for city officials and employees to have a general 
understanding of this area of the law and to work with their city attorney. For that reason, the 
League has prepared a more detailed memo on this topic, available here. 
 

TML member cities may use the material herein for any 

purpose. No other person or entity may reproduce, duplicate, 

or distribute any part of this document without the written 

authorization of the Texas Municipal League. 

http://www.tml.org/p/Religious%20Displays%202015.pdf


 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

12-10-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #3 

 

ORDINANCE 15-769 

 

TELECOMM TAX EXEMPTION REPEAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CITY OF HUMBLE 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 15-769 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS AMENDING CHAPTER 
40 “TAXATION” BY REPEALING THE APPLICATION OF THE EXEMPTION 
FROM LOCAL SALES AND USE TAXES ON RECEIPTS FROM THE SALE OF 
TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES WITHIN THE CITY OF HUMBLE, 
TEXAS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, Texas Tax Code Section 321.210(b) authorizes a governing body of a municipality to 
adopt an ordinance to repeal the city sales tax exemption for telecommunications 
services; and 

 
WHEREAS, once a municipality adopts an ordinance to repeal the exemption, records the vote in the 

meeting minutes and sends a copy of the Ordinance to the State Comptroller, the 
Comptroller will begin to collect sales taxes for telecommunication services; now 
therefore 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  The facts and matters set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance are found to be true and 

correct. 
 
Section 2. That the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 40 “Taxation” is hereby amended by the addition 

Section 40-14 thereto which shall read in its entirety as follows:  
 
Section 3. Sec. 40-14 TAXATION OF TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES 
  

(a) The application of the exemption provided for in §321.210(a), Tax Code, V.A.T.C.S., 
is hereby repealed by the City of Humble as authorized by §321.210(b) thereof. 
 

(b) A tax is hereby authorized on all telecommunications services sold within the City of 
Humble, Texas.  For purposes of this section, the sale of telecommunications services 
is consummated at the location of the telephone or other telecommunications device 
from which the call or other communication originates.  If the point of origin cannot 
be determined, the sale is consummated at the address to which the call or other 
communication is billed. 
 

(c) The rate of the tax imposed by this section shall be the same as the rate imposed by 
the City of Humble, Texas for all other local Sales and Use Taxes as authorized by 
the legislature of the State of Texas. 
 

Section 4. In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this Ordinance or 
the application of the same to any person or circumstances shall for any reason be 
adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it 
shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part of 
provision hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and 
the City Council of the City of Humble, Texas, declares that it would have passed 
each and every part of the same notwithstanding the omission of any such part 



thus declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, whether there be one or more 
parts. 

 
Section 5. The City Secretary shall forward to the Comptroller of the State of Texas by United 

States Registered or Certified Mail a copy of this Ordinance along with a copy of the 
minutes of the city Council’s vote on this Ordinance. 

 
Section 4. That this ordinance shall be effective immediately, upon passage.  
 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 10th day of December 2015. 

        
 
 
              
       Merle Aaron  
       Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Jason Stuebe 
City Secretary 
 
 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

12-10-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #4 

 

ORDINANCE 15-770 

 

M.BUTLER SUBDIVISION ROW 

ABANDONMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF HUMBLE 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 15-770 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS, PROVIDING 
FOR THE VACATING, ABANDONMENT, AND CLOSING OF A  
THIRTY FOOT (30’) RIGHT-OF-WAY EASEMENT LYING BETWEEN 
BLOCKS 1 AND 2 OF THE M. BUTLER SUBDIVISION OUT OF THE 
JOHN BROWN JONES 1/3 LEAGUE, ABSTRACT NO. 484, IN THE CITY 
OF HUMBLE, HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS.  
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Humble (the “City”) is a Texas home-rule municipality organized 
under the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, located in Harris County, Texas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City’s Charter provides that it may exercise all powers of local self-
government and powers granted to home rule cities by State Law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Texas Transportation Code provides that a home-rule municipality may 
vacate, abandon, or close a street or alley; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Humble, Texas finds that the unnamed thirty foot 
(30’) right-of-way easement lying between Blocks 1 and 2 of the M. Butler Subdivision, out of the 
John Brown Jones 1/3 League, Abstract No. 484, in the City of Humble, Harris County, Texas was 
never opened or improved as a public road; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City does not intend to pave or other wise use the said portion of the unnamed 
thirty foot (30’) right-of-way easement lying between Blocks 1 and 2; and 
  
 WHEREAS, Medclub Group Townsen Road, LLC and/or their Assignee is a Texas Limited 
Liability Company; and 
 
 WHEREAS,  Medclub Group Townsen Road, LLC and/or their Assignee has requested that 
the City abandon a portion of the unnamed thirty foot (30’) right-of-way; and 
 
 WHEREAS,  Medclub Group Townsen Road, LLC owns Blocks 1 and 2, and abuts all of the 
unnamed thirty foot (30’) right-of-way that the City Council is requested to abandon; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that abandoning parts of the said unnamed thirty foot (30’) 
right-of-way will cause no detriment to the rights of the citizens of Humble, Texas; and  
 
 WHEREAS the City Council finds and declares that it is in the best interest of all of the citizens 
of Humble, Texas that the part of the said unnamed thirty foot (30’) right-of-way be vacated, closed 
and abandoned; and 
 
 WEHEREAS, the City intends to terminate its interests only, if any, in the part of the said 
unnamed thirty foot (30’) right-of-way  and does not intend to convey or terminate any property interest 
of any person owning property abutting the thirty foot (30’) right-of-way or any other property in the 



 2 

M. Butler Subdivision out of the John Brown Jones 1/3 League, Abstract No. 484 in the City of 
Humble, Harris County, Texas; now therefore, 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  The facts set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance are hereby found to be true  
  and correct.  
 
Section 2. The City’s interest, if any, of the part of unnamed thirty foot (30’) right-of-way 

easement lying between Blocks 1 and 2 of the John Brown Jones 1/3 League, Abstract 
No. 484 in the City of Humble, Harris County, Texas is hereby vacated, abandoned and 
closed to be conveyed to Medclub Group Townsen Road, LLC, their Assignee and all 
successors for and in consideration of $10.00 and other good and valuable 
consideration.   A survey of the property to be abandoned is attached as Exhibit “A.” 

 
Section 3. This Ordinance any ordinances of the City to the extent that said ordinance are   
  inconsistent or in conflict with this Ordinance, but not otherwise. 
 
Section 4. In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this ordinance or the  
  application of same to any person or circumstance shall for any reason be adjudged  
  invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect,  
  impair, or invalidate this ordinance as a whole or any part of provision hereof other  
  than the part declared to be invalid, unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of 
  Humble, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every part of the same  
  notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or   
  unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 10th day of December 2015. 

 
              
       Merle Aaron  
       Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Jason Stuebe 
City Secretary 







 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

12-10-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #5 

 

RESOLUTION 15-759 

 

SUBSIDENCE DISTRICT APPOINTMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CITY OF HUMBLE 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-759 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS, DESIGNATING AN 
INDIVIDUAL TO SERVE ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HARRIS-
GALVESTON SUBSIDENCE DISTRICT FOR THE 2016-2018 TERM. 

 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE TEXAS: 

 
Section 1:  That Kyle Sears be, and is hereby re-appointed to serve a two year term as a board 

member of the Harris-Galveston Subsidence District Board of Directors, 
commencing on February 1, 2016 . 

 
Section 2: That the City Secretary is hereby authorized and ordered to notify the Executive 

Director of the Harris-Galveston Subsidence District of the City’s re-appointment 
contained herein. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this the 10th day of December, 2015. 
 
       
      APPROVED: 
 
 
            
      Merle Aaron 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Jason Stuebe 
City Secretary 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

12-10-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #6 

 

TOWNSEN BLVD. EXTENSION CONTRACT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 























































































 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

12-10-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #7 

 

CHANGE ORDER #2 

2013 ASPHALT PAVEMENT IMPROVEMENTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



$

0 to No. 1
$

$

$

$

By By By

ENGINEER'S PROJECT No.:Angel Brothers Enterprises, Ltd.
5210 West Road
Baytown, Texas 77522

OWNER:

DATE OF ISSUANCE:

(Name &
City of Humble
102 Granberry Street
Humble, Texas 77338

ARKK Engineers, LLC                        
7322 Southwest Fwy, Suite 1040 
Houston, Texas 77074                                               Address)

5,415,142.00

Net Change From Previous Change Orders
14 Calendar Days

CHANGE ORDER NO.

31,532.50

2013 Asphalt Pavement ImprovementsPROJECT:

Attachments: See Attachment 'A'

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIME

To add additional quantities for asphalt recycling and asphalt overlay of 
Carpenter Street, Colorado Street and Indiana Street.

Purpose of the Change Order:

Original Contract Price Original Contract Time

2

Angel Brothers Enterprises, Ltd.

13-009

Contract Time Prior to this Change Order
464 Calendar Days

Net Increase (Decrease) of this Change Order
30 Calendar Days

Calendar Days450

December 4, 2015

ENGINEER:

You are directed to make the following changes in the Contract Documents.

CONTRACTOR:

ARKK Engineers, LLC City of Humble

Contract Price with all Approved Change Orders

Previous Change Orders No.

RECOMMENDED APPROVED APPROVED

Contract Price Prior to this Change Order

Net (Increase) Decrease of this Change Order

Contract Time with all Approved Change Orders
494 Calendar Days

5,446,674.50

5,895,724.20

449,049.70



ITEM ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT
EST. 

QUAN.
UNIT 

PRICE TOTAL

ADDITIONS
CO2-1 Traffic Control and Regulation L.S. 1 $4,500.00 $4,500.00

CO2-2
Asphalt base repair including 8" cement stabilized sand subgrade and 8" flexible base material S.Y. 2,175 $67.00 $145,725.00

CO2-3 8" minimum depth reclamation of existing asphalt pavement S.Y. 14,500 $6.00 $87,000.00
CO2-4 Cement slurry for asphalt reclamation (6% minimum by dry weight) TON 330 $209.09 $68,999.70
CO2-5 2" minimum thickness HMAC Type D overlay S.Y. 14,500 $9.85 $142,825.00

$449,049.70
$0.00

$449,049.70

Subtotal Additions:
Subtotal Deletions:

Total Change Order Amount:

City of Humble
2013 Asphalt Pavement Improvements Project

Attachment "A"
December 4, 2015



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

12-10-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #8 

 

GONZALEZ DEVELOPMENT PLAT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

12-10-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #9 

 

 

HUMBLE EXPRESSWAY INN 

DEVELOPMENT PLAT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

12-10-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #10 

 

WILSON ROAD INDUSTRIAL COMPLEX  

SUBDIVISION PLAT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

12-10-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #11 

 

 

RTG HUMBLE PLAT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



RTG HUMBLE

Copyright © 2015

Tel. (713) 212-0011 Fax (713) 212-0010

7660 Woodway Drive, Suite 400

Houston, Texas 77063

TBPE # F-1048  TBPLS # F-10107503

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B. "X" CUT (FOUND)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WATER & SANITARY ESMT.  PER H.C.C.F. NO. H814878

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WATER & SANITARY ESMT.  PER H.C.C.F. NO. H814878

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" IRON ROD W/CAP "MOMENTUM" (FOUND) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
"X" CUT (FOUND)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" IRON ROD (FOUND) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" IRON ROD W/CAP "HOVIS" (FOUND) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" IRON ROD W/CAP "BURY+PARTNERS" (SET) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
"X" CUT (FOUND)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" IRON ROD W/CAP "MOMENTUM" (FOUND) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.B.M. "B" ELEV=82.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.053 ACRES (220,093 SQ. FT.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.0523 ACRES (CALLED) ARCHWAY BURDOM, LTD. H.C.C.F. NO. 20150036948

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.8973 ACRES (CALLED) RRREI LIMITED PARTNERSHIP H.C.C.F. NO. W032734

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENDER AVENUE (60' R.O.W.) VOL. 313, PG. 3 - H.C.M.R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMAINDER OF TRACT 1 6.666 ACRES (CALLED) RRREI LIMITED PARTNERSHIP H.C.C.F. NO. 20060116097

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMAINDER OF 19.9455 ACRES (CALLED) THE ABERCROMBIE COMPANY H.C.C.F. NO. J996915

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMAINDER OF 20.0011 ACRES (CALLED) THE ABERCROMBIE COMPANY H.C.C.F. NO. K198303

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMAINDER OF 20.0011 ACRES (CALLED) THE ABERCROMBIE COMPANY H.C.C.F. NO. K198303

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMAINDER OF 20.0011 ACRES (CALLED) THE ABERCROMBIE COMPANY H.C.C.F. NO. K198303

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURDOM DRIVE (40' R.O.W.) H.C.C.F. NO. H841878

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.S. HIGHWAY 59 (EASTEX FREEWAY) (400' R.O.W.) PUBLIC AND CONCRETE PAVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.B.M. "A" ELEV=83.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENDER HOLLOW APARTMENTS SECTION 2 VOL. 313, PG.3 H.C.M.R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 1 UNRESTRICTED RESERVE "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PACIFIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNION

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
MCDUGALD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDSWEPT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FERGUSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAROLYN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONTGOMERY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAMMON

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKELAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLENHOLLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE A

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE B

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE C

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE D

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE E

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE F

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE G

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGGINS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANBERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIRSCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE H

AutoCAD SHX Text
NANCY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEMORIAL GLEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LYNN

AutoCAD SHX Text
REBECCA

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLEN VALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
HERMAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNSHIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEMORIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
E MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRENDA

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOWARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURDOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAITTI

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANTERBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHWICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
7TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
6TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
4TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
3RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE D

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE E

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE F

AutoCAD SHX Text
2ND

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHTOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHOOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HUMBLE-

AutoCAD SHX Text
WESTFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASTEX

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHARLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
MCKAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISAACS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MCKAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
59

AutoCAD SHX Text
184

AutoCAD SHX Text
1960

AutoCAD SHX Text
184

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project No.:  R103237-70003

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale: 1"=100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
A 5.053 ACRE TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN THE  W.B.	ADAMS SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 95,  ADAMS SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 95,  AS RECORDED UNDER HARRIS COUNTY CLERK'S FILE NUMBER 20150036948 OF THE HARRIS COUNTY OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF  REAL PROPERTY (H.C.O.PR.R.R.P.). 1 RESERVE   1 BLOCK DECEMBER 2015 REASON FOR PLAT: TO CREATE ONE UNRESTRICTED RESERVE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER/DEVELOPER: ROOMS TO GO 400 PERIMETER CENTER TERRACE, SUITE 800 ATLANTA, GEORGIA 30346-1227

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1.	UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, THE B.L., WHETHER ONE OR MORE, SHOWN ON THIS  SUBDIVISION UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, THE B.L., WHETHER ONE OR MORE, SHOWN ON THIS  SUBDIVISION PLAT ARE ESTABLISHED TO EVIDENCE COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE  PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 38, CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS, IN EFFECT AT THE TIME THIS PLAT , IN EFFECT AT THE TIME THIS PLAT WAS APPROVED, WHICH MAY BE AMENDED TIME FROM TIME. 2.	THE COORDINATES SHOWN HEREON ARE STATE PLANE GRID AND MAY BE BROUGHT TO SURFACE THE COORDINATES SHOWN HEREON ARE STATE PLANE GRID AND MAY BE BROUGHT TO SURFACE BY APPLYING THE FOLLOWING COMBINED SCALE: 1.000001464. 1.000001464. . 3.	ALL BEARINGS AND DISTANCES SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES. ALL BEARINGS AND DISTANCES SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES. SURFACE VALUES.  VALUES. 4.	ANY EASEMENTS SHOWN HEREON THAT ARE CREATED BY A SEPARATE RECORDED INSTRUMENT ANY EASEMENTS SHOWN HEREON THAT ARE CREATED BY A SEPARATE RECORDED INSTRUMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY THE TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH SEPARATE INSTRUMENT AND THEIR LOCATIONS AS DEPICTED HEREON ARE APPROXIMATE, WITH THE EXACT LOCATION DETERMINED BY SUCH SEPARATE RECORDED INSTRUMENT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOLUME

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CUT "X" FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" IRON ROD W/CAP FOUND (UNLESS NOTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" IRON ROD SET W/BURY & PARTNERS CAP (UNLESS NOTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON PIPE FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.C.C.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARRIS COUNTY CLERK'S FILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.C.M.R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARRIS COUNTY MAP RECORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSTON/HARRIS CO. KEY MAP # 493 T

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF TEXAS COUNTY OF HARRIS  WE, ARCHWAY BURDOM, LTD., ACTING BY AND THROUGH,             AND           , AGENT AND ATTORNEY IN FACT AND ASSISTANT SECRETARY           , AGENT AND ATTORNEY IN FACT AND ASSISTANT SECRETARY , AGENT AND ATTORNEY IN FACT AND ASSISTANT SECRETARY RESPECTIVELY OF ARCHWAY BURDOM, LTD., OWNERS HEREINAFTER REFERRED , LTD., OWNERS HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS OWNERS OF THE 5.0526 ACRE TRACT DESCRIBED IN THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING MAP OF RTG HUMBLE, DO HEREBY MAKE AND ESTABLISH SAID RTG HUMBLE, DO HEREBY MAKE AND ESTABLISH SAID , DO HEREBY MAKE AND ESTABLISH SAID SUBDIVISION AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN OF SAID PROPERTY ACCORDING TO ALL LINES, DEDICATIONS, RESTRICTIONS, AND NOTATIONS ON SAID MAPS OR PLAT AND HEREBY DEDICATE TO THE USE OF THE PUBLIC FOREVER, ALL STREETS (EXCEPT THOSE STREETS DESIGNATED AS PRIVATE STREETS), ALLEYS, PARKS, WATER COURSES, DRAINS, EASEMENTS AND PUBLIC PLACES SHOWN THEREON FOR THE PURPOSES AND CONSIDERATIONS THEREIN EXPRESSED; AND DO HEREBY BIND OURSELVES, OUR HEIRS, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS TO WARRANT AND FOREVER DEFEND THE TITLE ON THE LAND SO DEDICATED. FURTHER, OWNERS DO HEREBY DEDICATE TO THE PUBLIC A STRIP OF LAND FIFTEEN (15) FEET WIDE ON EACH SIDE OF THE CENTER LINE OF ANY AND ALL BAYOUS, CREEKS, GULLIES, RAVINES, DRAWS, SLOUGHS, OR OTHER NATURAL DRAINAGE COURSES LOCATED IN SAID PLAT, AS EASEMENTS FOR DRAINAGE PURPOSES, GIVING THE CITY OF HUMBLE, HARRIS COUNTY, OR ANY OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY, THE RIGHT TO ENTER UPON SAID EASEMENT AT ANY AND ALL TIMES FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE OF DRAINAGE FACILITIES AND STRUCTURES. FURTHER, OWNERS DO HEREBY COVENANT AND AGREE THAT ALL OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THIS PLAT AND ADJACENT TO ANY DRAINAGE EASEMENT, DITCH, GULLY, CREEK OR NATURAL DRAINAGE WAY IS HEREBY RESTRICTED TO KEEP SUCH DRAINAGE WAYS AND EASEMENTS CLEAR OF FENCES, BUILDINGS, PLANTING AND OTHER OBSTRUCTIONS TO THE OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE OF THE DRAINAGE FACILITY AND THAT SUCH ABUTTING PROPERTY SHALL NOT BE PERMITTED TO DRAIN DIRECTLY INTO THIS EASEMENT EXCEPT BY MEANS OF AN APPROVED DRAINAGE STRUCTURE. FURTHER, OWNERS DO HEREBY COVENANT AND AGREE THAT ALL OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THIS PLAT SHALL BE RESTRICTED TO PREVENT THE DRAINAGE OF ANY SEPTIC TANKS INTO ANY PUBLIC OR PRIVATE STREET, ROAD OR ALLEY OR ANY DRAINAGE DITCH, EITHER DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY. IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, ARCHWAY BURDOM, LTD., HAS CAUSED THESE ARCHWAY BURDOM, LTD., HAS CAUSED THESE , HAS CAUSED THESE PRESENTS TO BE SIGNED BY                 AND ATTORNEY IN FACT AND                        AND ATTORNEY IN FACT AND         AND ATTORNEY IN FACT AND        ,              ASSISTANT SECRETARY RESPECTIVELY OF ARCHWAY BURDOM,               ASSISTANT SECRETARY RESPECTIVELY OF ARCHWAY BURDOM,  ASSISTANT SECRETARY RESPECTIVELY OF ARCHWAY BURDOM, LTD., THEREUNTO AUTHORIZED AND ITS COMMON SEAL THEREUNTO AFFIXED , THEREUNTO AUTHORIZED AND ITS COMMON SEAL THEREUNTO AFFIXED THIS THE     	                DAY OF     	                DAY OF                 DAY OF  DAY OF  		    	     , 2015.     	     , 2015.      , 2015. , 2015. ABC CORPORATION 	 BY: 									     					 AGENT AND ATTORNEY IN FACT	     		 BY:      							   							     					 ASSISTANT SECRETARY STATE OF TEXAS COUNTY OF HARRIS BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORITY, ON THIS DAY PERSONALLY APPEARED 			 AND 			, OF ARCHWAY BURDOM, LTD.,  AND 			, OF ARCHWAY BURDOM, LTD., , OF ARCHWAY BURDOM, LTD., , KNOWN TO ME TO BE THE PERSON(S) WHOSE NAME(S) ARE SUBSCRIBED TO THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT THEY EXECUTED THE SAME FOR THE PURPOSES AND CONSIDERATIONS THEREIN EXPRESSED, AND THEREIN EXPRESSED, AND IN THE CAPACITY THEREIN STATED. GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE, THIS	           DAY OF            DAY OF  DAY OF    , 2015 , 2015 NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR  THE STATE OF TEXAS MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:				 STATE OF TEXAS COUNTY OF HARRIS CITY OF HUMBLE THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE CITY OF HUMBLE HAS APPROVED THIS PLAT AND SUBDIVISION, AS SHOWN HEREON IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF THE OFFICIAL SIGNATURE OF THE MAYOR AND CITY SECRETARY OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE THIS     DAY OF		    	     , 2015.     DAY OF		    	     , 2015.  DAY OF		    	     , 2015.     	     , 2015.      , 2015. , 2015. BY: 							     	      	     	MERLE, AARON, MAYOR MERLE, AARON, MAYOR BY: 						         	          	    JASON STUEBE, CITY SECRETARY I, STAN STANART, COUNTY CLERK OF HARRIS COUNTY AND EX OFFICIO CLERK  STAN STANART, COUNTY CLERK OF HARRIS COUNTY AND EX OFFICIO CLERK STAN STANART, COUNTY CLERK OF HARRIS COUNTY AND EX OFFICIO CLERK  STANART, COUNTY CLERK OF HARRIS COUNTY AND EX OFFICIO CLERK STANART, COUNTY CLERK OF HARRIS COUNTY AND EX OFFICIO CLERK  COUNTY CLERK OF HARRIS COUNTY AND EX OFFICIO CLERK COUNTY CLERK OF HARRIS COUNTY AND EX OFFICIO CLERK  CLERK OF HARRIS COUNTY AND EX OFFICIO CLERK CLERK OF HARRIS COUNTY AND EX OFFICIO CLERK  OF HARRIS COUNTY AND EX OFFICIO CLERK OF HARRIS COUNTY AND EX OFFICIO CLERK  HARRIS COUNTY AND EX OFFICIO CLERK HARRIS COUNTY AND EX OFFICIO CLERK  COUNTY AND EX OFFICIO CLERK COUNTY AND EX OFFICIO CLERK  AND EX OFFICIO CLERK AND EX OFFICIO CLERK  EX OFFICIO CLERK EX OFFICIO CLERK  OFFICIO CLERK OFFICIO CLERK  CLERK CLERK OF THE HARRIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' COURT, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT  THE HARRIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' COURT, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE HARRIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' COURT, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT  HARRIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' COURT, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT HARRIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' COURT, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT  COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' COURT, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' COURT, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT  COMMISSIONERS' COURT, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT COMMISSIONERS' COURT, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT  COURT, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT COURT, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT  DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT  HEREBY CERTIFY THAT HEREBY CERTIFY THAT  CERTIFY THAT CERTIFY THAT  THAT THAT THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT WAS APPROVED AT A LEGALLY CONVENED MEETING  WITHIN INSTRUMENT WAS APPROVED AT A LEGALLY CONVENED MEETING WITHIN INSTRUMENT WAS APPROVED AT A LEGALLY CONVENED MEETING  INSTRUMENT WAS APPROVED AT A LEGALLY CONVENED MEETING INSTRUMENT WAS APPROVED AT A LEGALLY CONVENED MEETING  WAS APPROVED AT A LEGALLY CONVENED MEETING WAS APPROVED AT A LEGALLY CONVENED MEETING  APPROVED AT A LEGALLY CONVENED MEETING APPROVED AT A LEGALLY CONVENED MEETING  AT A LEGALLY CONVENED MEETING AT A LEGALLY CONVENED MEETING  A LEGALLY CONVENED MEETING A LEGALLY CONVENED MEETING  LEGALLY CONVENED MEETING LEGALLY CONVENED MEETING  CONVENED MEETING CONVENED MEETING  MEETING MEETING OF THE HARRIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' COURT HELD ON  THE HARRIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' COURT HELD ON THE HARRIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' COURT HELD ON  HARRIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' COURT HELD ON HARRIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' COURT HELD ON  COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' COURT HELD ON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' COURT HELD ON  COMMISSIONERS' COURT HELD ON COMMISSIONERS' COURT HELD ON  COURT HELD ON COURT HELD ON  HELD ON HELD ON  ON ON __________________________, 2015 BY AN ORDER ENTERED INTO THE  2015 BY AN ORDER ENTERED INTO THE 2015 BY AN ORDER ENTERED INTO THE  BY AN ORDER ENTERED INTO THE BY AN ORDER ENTERED INTO THE  AN ORDER ENTERED INTO THE AN ORDER ENTERED INTO THE  ORDER ENTERED INTO THE ORDER ENTERED INTO THE  ENTERED INTO THE ENTERED INTO THE  INTO THE INTO THE  THE THE MINUTES OF THE COURT. _____________________________ STAN STANART CLERK OF THE COUNTY COURT HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS BY:	_________________________ _________________________ DEPUTY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
  I, STEPHEN L. GODINICH, AM REGISTERED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS  I, STEPHEN L. GODINICH, AM REGISTERED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS I, STEPHEN L. GODINICH, AM REGISTERED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS  STEPHEN L. GODINICH, AM REGISTERED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS STEPHEN L. GODINICH, AM REGISTERED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS  L. GODINICH, AM REGISTERED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS L. GODINICH, AM REGISTERED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS  GODINICH, AM REGISTERED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS GODINICH, AM REGISTERED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS  AM REGISTERED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS AM REGISTERED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS  REGISTERED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS REGISTERED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS  UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS  THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS  LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS  OF THE STATE OF TEXAS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS  THE STATE OF TEXAS THE STATE OF TEXAS  STATE OF TEXAS STATE OF TEXAS  OF TEXAS OF TEXAS  TEXAS TEXAS TO PRACTICE THE PROFESSION OF SURVEYING AND HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE  PRACTICE THE PROFESSION OF SURVEYING AND HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE PRACTICE THE PROFESSION OF SURVEYING AND HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE  THE PROFESSION OF SURVEYING AND HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE THE PROFESSION OF SURVEYING AND HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE  PROFESSION OF SURVEYING AND HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE PROFESSION OF SURVEYING AND HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE  OF SURVEYING AND HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE OF SURVEYING AND HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE  SURVEYING AND HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE SURVEYING AND HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE  AND HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE AND HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE  HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE  CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE  THAT THE ABOVE THAT THE ABOVE  THE ABOVE THE ABOVE  ABOVE ABOVE SUBDIVISION IS TRUE AND ACCURATE; WAS PREPARED FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY OF  IS TRUE AND ACCURATE; WAS PREPARED FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY OF IS TRUE AND ACCURATE; WAS PREPARED FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY OF  TRUE AND ACCURATE; WAS PREPARED FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY OF TRUE AND ACCURATE; WAS PREPARED FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY OF  AND ACCURATE; WAS PREPARED FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY OF AND ACCURATE; WAS PREPARED FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY OF  ACCURATE; WAS PREPARED FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY OF ACCURATE; WAS PREPARED FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY OF  WAS PREPARED FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY OF WAS PREPARED FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY OF  PREPARED FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY OF PREPARED FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY OF  FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY OF FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY OF  AN ACTUAL SURVEY OF AN ACTUAL SURVEY OF  ACTUAL SURVEY OF ACTUAL SURVEY OF  SURVEY OF SURVEY OF  OF OF THE PROPERTY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION ON THE GROUND; THAT, EXCEPT AS  PROPERTY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION ON THE GROUND; THAT, EXCEPT AS PROPERTY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION ON THE GROUND; THAT, EXCEPT AS  MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION ON THE GROUND; THAT, EXCEPT AS MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION ON THE GROUND; THAT, EXCEPT AS  UNDER MY SUPERVISION ON THE GROUND; THAT, EXCEPT AS UNDER MY SUPERVISION ON THE GROUND; THAT, EXCEPT AS  MY SUPERVISION ON THE GROUND; THAT, EXCEPT AS MY SUPERVISION ON THE GROUND; THAT, EXCEPT AS  SUPERVISION ON THE GROUND; THAT, EXCEPT AS SUPERVISION ON THE GROUND; THAT, EXCEPT AS  ON THE GROUND; THAT, EXCEPT AS ON THE GROUND; THAT, EXCEPT AS  THE GROUND; THAT, EXCEPT AS THE GROUND; THAT, EXCEPT AS  GROUND; THAT, EXCEPT AS GROUND; THAT, EXCEPT AS  THAT, EXCEPT AS THAT, EXCEPT AS  EXCEPT AS EXCEPT AS  AS AS SHOWN ALL BOUNDARY CORNERS, ANGLE POINTS, POINTS OF CURVATURE AND OTHER  ALL BOUNDARY CORNERS, ANGLE POINTS, POINTS OF CURVATURE AND OTHER ALL BOUNDARY CORNERS, ANGLE POINTS, POINTS OF CURVATURE AND OTHER  BOUNDARY CORNERS, ANGLE POINTS, POINTS OF CURVATURE AND OTHER BOUNDARY CORNERS, ANGLE POINTS, POINTS OF CURVATURE AND OTHER  CORNERS, ANGLE POINTS, POINTS OF CURVATURE AND OTHER CORNERS, ANGLE POINTS, POINTS OF CURVATURE AND OTHER  ANGLE POINTS, POINTS OF CURVATURE AND OTHER ANGLE POINTS, POINTS OF CURVATURE AND OTHER  POINTS, POINTS OF CURVATURE AND OTHER POINTS, POINTS OF CURVATURE AND OTHER  POINTS OF CURVATURE AND OTHER POINTS OF CURVATURE AND OTHER  OF CURVATURE AND OTHER OF CURVATURE AND OTHER  CURVATURE AND OTHER CURVATURE AND OTHER  AND OTHER AND OTHER  OTHER OTHER POINTS OF REFERENCE HAVE BEEN MARKED WITH IRON (OR OTHER  OBJECTS OF A  OF REFERENCE HAVE BEEN MARKED WITH IRON (OR OTHER  OBJECTS OF A OF REFERENCE HAVE BEEN MARKED WITH IRON (OR OTHER  OBJECTS OF A  REFERENCE HAVE BEEN MARKED WITH IRON (OR OTHER  OBJECTS OF A REFERENCE HAVE BEEN MARKED WITH IRON (OR OTHER  OBJECTS OF A  HAVE BEEN MARKED WITH IRON (OR OTHER  OBJECTS OF A HAVE BEEN MARKED WITH IRON (OR OTHER  OBJECTS OF A  BEEN MARKED WITH IRON (OR OTHER  OBJECTS OF A BEEN MARKED WITH IRON (OR OTHER  OBJECTS OF A  MARKED WITH IRON (OR OTHER  OBJECTS OF A MARKED WITH IRON (OR OTHER  OBJECTS OF A  WITH IRON (OR OTHER  OBJECTS OF A WITH IRON (OR OTHER  OBJECTS OF A  IRON (OR OTHER  OBJECTS OF A IRON (OR OTHER  OBJECTS OF A  (OR OTHER  OBJECTS OF A (OR OTHER  OBJECTS OF A  OTHER  OBJECTS OF A OTHER  OBJECTS OF A   OBJECTS OF A  OBJECTS OF A OBJECTS OF A  OF A OF A  A A PERMANENT NATURE) PIPES OR RODS HAVING AN OUTSIDE DIAMETER OF NOT LESS  NATURE) PIPES OR RODS HAVING AN OUTSIDE DIAMETER OF NOT LESS NATURE) PIPES OR RODS HAVING AN OUTSIDE DIAMETER OF NOT LESS  PIPES OR RODS HAVING AN OUTSIDE DIAMETER OF NOT LESS PIPES OR RODS HAVING AN OUTSIDE DIAMETER OF NOT LESS  OR RODS HAVING AN OUTSIDE DIAMETER OF NOT LESS OR RODS HAVING AN OUTSIDE DIAMETER OF NOT LESS  RODS HAVING AN OUTSIDE DIAMETER OF NOT LESS RODS HAVING AN OUTSIDE DIAMETER OF NOT LESS  HAVING AN OUTSIDE DIAMETER OF NOT LESS HAVING AN OUTSIDE DIAMETER OF NOT LESS  AN OUTSIDE DIAMETER OF NOT LESS AN OUTSIDE DIAMETER OF NOT LESS  OUTSIDE DIAMETER OF NOT LESS OUTSIDE DIAMETER OF NOT LESS  DIAMETER OF NOT LESS DIAMETER OF NOT LESS  OF NOT LESS OF NOT LESS  NOT LESS NOT LESS  LESS LESS THAN FIVE EIGHTS (5/8) INCH AND A LENGTH OF NOT LESS THAN THREE (3) FEET;  FIVE EIGHTS (5/8) INCH AND A LENGTH OF NOT LESS THAN THREE (3) FEET; FIVE EIGHTS (5/8) INCH AND A LENGTH OF NOT LESS THAN THREE (3) FEET;  EIGHTS (5/8) INCH AND A LENGTH OF NOT LESS THAN THREE (3) FEET; EIGHTS (5/8) INCH AND A LENGTH OF NOT LESS THAN THREE (3) FEET;  (5/8) INCH AND A LENGTH OF NOT LESS THAN THREE (3) FEET; (5/8) INCH AND A LENGTH OF NOT LESS THAN THREE (3) FEET;  INCH AND A LENGTH OF NOT LESS THAN THREE (3) FEET; INCH AND A LENGTH OF NOT LESS THAN THREE (3) FEET;  AND A LENGTH OF NOT LESS THAN THREE (3) FEET; AND A LENGTH OF NOT LESS THAN THREE (3) FEET;  A LENGTH OF NOT LESS THAN THREE (3) FEET; A LENGTH OF NOT LESS THAN THREE (3) FEET;  LENGTH OF NOT LESS THAN THREE (3) FEET; LENGTH OF NOT LESS THAN THREE (3) FEET;  OF NOT LESS THAN THREE (3) FEET; OF NOT LESS THAN THREE (3) FEET;  NOT LESS THAN THREE (3) FEET; NOT LESS THAN THREE (3) FEET;  LESS THAN THREE (3) FEET; LESS THAN THREE (3) FEET;  THAN THREE (3) FEET; THAN THREE (3) FEET;  THREE (3) FEET; THREE (3) FEET;  (3) FEET; (3) FEET;  FEET; FEET; AND THAT THE PLAT BOUNDARY CORNERS HAVE BEEN TIED  TO THE TEXAS  THAT THE PLAT BOUNDARY CORNERS HAVE BEEN TIED  TO THE TEXAS THAT THE PLAT BOUNDARY CORNERS HAVE BEEN TIED  TO THE TEXAS  THE PLAT BOUNDARY CORNERS HAVE BEEN TIED  TO THE TEXAS THE PLAT BOUNDARY CORNERS HAVE BEEN TIED  TO THE TEXAS  PLAT BOUNDARY CORNERS HAVE BEEN TIED  TO THE TEXAS PLAT BOUNDARY CORNERS HAVE BEEN TIED  TO THE TEXAS  BOUNDARY CORNERS HAVE BEEN TIED  TO THE TEXAS BOUNDARY CORNERS HAVE BEEN TIED  TO THE TEXAS  CORNERS HAVE BEEN TIED  TO THE TEXAS CORNERS HAVE BEEN TIED  TO THE TEXAS  HAVE BEEN TIED  TO THE TEXAS HAVE BEEN TIED  TO THE TEXAS  BEEN TIED  TO THE TEXAS BEEN TIED  TO THE TEXAS  TIED  TO THE TEXAS TIED  TO THE TEXAS   TO THE TEXAS  TO THE TEXAS TO THE TEXAS  THE TEXAS THE TEXAS  TEXAS TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM OF 1983, SOUTH CENTRAL ZONE. STEPHEN L. GODINICH, RPLS REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR  TEXAS REGISTRATION NO. 5170

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 100'



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

12-10-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #12 

 

 

INSURANCE COMMITTEE 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 


	Item 11 - RTG Humble Plat.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C0.4 PLAT





